
Document Number: 2318113 V1 

AGENDA FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL HELD IN 
THE COUNCIL CHAMBER AND ELECTRONICALLY (HYBRID) FROM 
CITY HALL, 141 WEST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC, 
ON MONDAY, JANUARY 16, 2023 AT 6:00 PM 

 
 

“Live” Broadcast via City Website www.cnv.org/LiveStreaming 
Complete Agenda Package available at www.cnv.org/CouncilMeetings 

 
The City of North Vancouver acknowledges that this Council meeting is held on the 

traditional territories of the Squamish and Tsleil-Waututh Nations. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
1. Regular Council Meeting Agenda, January 16, 2023 
 
ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 
2. Regular Council Meeting Minutes, December 12, 2022 
 
3. Special Regular Council Meeting Minutes, December 15, 2022 
 
PROCLAMATION 
 

Alzheimer’s Awareness Month – January 2023  
 
PUBLIC INPUT PERIOD 
 
DELEGATION 
 

Dennis Hilton and Bradley Hodson, Members, Residents’ Alternative Design Plan 
for St. Andrews Avenue – St. Andrews Safety Improvements Project 

 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
4. Dennis Hilton, Member, Residents’ Alternative Design Plan for St. Andrews 

Avenue – St. Andrews Safety Improvements Project 
 
PRESENTATION 
 

Winter 2023 Mobility Strategy Implementation Update – Manager, Transportation 
Planning, and Manager, Public Realm Infrastructure 

 
 Information Report, January 4, 2023 – “Winter 2023 Mobility Strategy 

Implementation Update” 
 
  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – January 16, 2023 Page 2 

 
REPORT 
 
5. Zoning Bylaw Amendment for 229 East 22nd Street (Bharati Shrestha, Maple 

Building Design) 
 
PUBLIC CLARIFICATION PERIOD 
 
COUNCIL INQUIRIES / REPORTS 
 
NEW ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
NOTICES OF MOTION 
 
RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION 
 
REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE (CLOSED SESSION) 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – January 16, 2023 Page 3 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
1. Regular Council Meeting Agenda, January 16, 2023 
 
ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 
2. Regular Council Meeting Minutes, December 12, 2022 
 
3. Special Regular Council Meeting Minutes, December 15, 2022 
 
PROCLAMATION 
 

Alzheimer’s Awareness Month – January 2023  
 
PUBLIC INPUT PERIOD 
 

The Public Input Period is addressed in sections 12.20 to 12.28 of “Council Procedure Bylaw, 2015, 
No. 8500.”  The time allotted for each speaker addressing Council during the Public Input Period is 
2 minutes, with the number of speakers set at 5 persons.  Speakers’ comments will be audio 
recorded, as well as live-streamed on the City’s website, and will form part of the public record. 
 

Speakers during the Public Input Period are permitted to join the meeting electronically via Webex 
or in person in the Council Chamber.  
 

There are 2 ways to sign up to speak during the Public Input Period: 

1) Speakers participating electronically must pre-register by 12:00 noon on the day of the Council 
meeting by completing the online form at cnv.org/PublicInputPeriod, or by phoning 604-990-
4230 to provide contact information.  Pre-registrants will receive instructions via email or phone 
on the afternoon of the Council meeting, including a request to connect to the meeting 15-30 
minutes before the meeting start time. 

2) Speakers participating in person must sign the speaker list located outside the Council 
Chamber between 5:30 and 5:55 pm on the day of the Council meeting. No late speakers will 
be added to the list. 

 

If a speaker has written material to accompany their comments, the material must be sent to the 
Corporate Officer at clerks@cnv.org no later than 12:00 noon on the day of the Council meeting. 
 

The Public Input Period offers an opportunity to express comments only; Council is there to listen 
and questions will not be responded to.  Speakers must comply with the General Rules of Conduct 
set out in section 5.1 of “Council Procedure Bylaw, 2015, No. 8500” and may not speak with respect 
to items listed in section 12.25(2). 
 

Speakers are not to address matters from a concluded Public Hearing or Public Meeting.  When a 
Public Hearing / Meeting is scheduled on the same evening’s agenda, speakers are asked to only 
provide input when that item comes forward for discussion on the agenda in order for the comments 
to be considered and form part of the official record. 
 

Please address the Mayor as “Your Worship” or “Mayor, followed by his/her surname”.   
Councillors should be addressed as “Councillor, followed by their surname”.  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – January 16, 2023 Page 4 

 
DELEGATION 
 

Dennis Hilton and Bradley Hodson, Members, Residents’ Alternative Design Plan 
for St. Andrews Avenue 
 
Re: St. Andrews Safety Improvements Project 
 
Item 4 refers. 

 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
4. Dennis Hilton, Member, Residents’ Alternative Design Plan for St. Andrews 

Avenue, November 16, 2022 – File: 16-8480-20-0034/1 
 
 Re: St. Andrews Safety Improvements Project 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
THAT the correspondence from Dennis Hilton, Member, Residents’ Alternative 
Design Plan for St. Andrews Avenue, dated November 16, 2022, regarding the 
“St. Andrews Safety Improvements Project”, be received with thanks. 

 
PRESENTATION 
 

Winter 2023 Mobility Strategy Implementation Update – Manager, Transportation 
Planning, and Manager, Public Realm Infrastructure 

 
 Information Report, January 4, 2023 – “Winter 2023 Mobility Strategy 

Implementation Update” 
 
REPORT 
 
5. Zoning Bylaw Amendment for 229 East 22nd Street (Bharati Shrestha, Maple 

Building Design) – File: 08-3400-20-0080/1 
 

Report: Planner 1, January 4, 2023 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 1, dated January 4, 2023, entitled 
“Zoning Bylaw Amendment for 229 East 22nd Street (Bharati Shrestha, Maple 
Building Design)”: 
 
THAT the application submitted by Bharati Shrestha / Maple Building Design, to 
rezone the property located at 229 East 22nd Street from a RS-1 Zone to a RT-1 
Zone, be considered and no Public Hearing be held, in accordance with the Local 
Government Act; 
 
AND THAT notification be circulated in accordance with the Local Government 
Act.  

  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – January 16, 2023 Page 5 

 
PUBLIC CLARIFICATION PERIOD 
 
The Public Clarification Period is limited to 10 minutes in total and is an opportunity for 
the public to ask a question regarding process or clarification on an item on the Regular 
Council Agenda. The Public Clarification Period concludes after 10 minutes and the 
Regular Council Meeting reconvenes. 
 
COUNCIL INQUIRIES / REPORTS 
 
NEW ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
NOTICES OF MOTION 
 
RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION 
 

THAT Council recess to the Committee of the Whole, Closed Session, pursuant 
to the Community Charter, Sections 90(1)(e) [land matter], 90(1)(i) [legal advice] 
and 90(1)(k) [proposed service]. 

 
REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE (CLOSED SESSION) 
 
ADJOURN 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



Document Number: 2309348 

 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL HELD IN THE 
COUNCIL CHAMBER AND ELECTRONICALLY (HYBRID) FROM CITY 
HALL, 141 WEST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC, ON 
MONDAY, DECEMBER 12, 2022 

 
 

PRESENT 
 

COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 

 
 

STAFF MEMBERS 
 

Mayor L. Buchanan 
Councillor H. Back 
Councillor D. Bell 
Councillor A. Girard 
Councillor J. McIlroy 
Councillor S. Shahriari 
Councillor T. Valente 
 
 

B. Pearce, Deputy CAO / Director, Strategic and 
Corporate Services 

K. Graham, Corporate Officer 
C. Baird, Deputy Corporate Officer 
L. Sawrenko, Chief Financial Officer 
D. Van Heerden, Manager, Financial Planning 
S. Namata, Budget Analyst 
H. Granger, City Solicitor 
J. Draper, Acting Director, Planning and Development  
R. Basi, Manager, Development Planning 
H. Dang, Planner 
K. Magnusson, Director, Engineering, Parks and 

Environment 
B. Willock, Senior Manager, Engineering Planning and 

Design 
M. Holm, Manager, Engineering Design 
L. Gillies, Section Manager, Utilities 
L. Orr, Acting Director, Community and Partner 

Engagement 
G. Schalk, Public Safety Director and Fire Chief 
T. Huckell, Committee Clerk 

 
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 pm. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor Girard  
 
1. Regular Council Meeting Agenda, December 12, 2022 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 
Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Girard  
 
2. Regular Council Meeting Minutes, December 5, 2022 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

PUBLIC INPUT PERIOD 
 

• Ben Colangelo, 351 East 16th Street, North Vancouver, spoke regarding the Duplex 
Special Study – Southern Portion. 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 2 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of December 12, 2022 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 

THAT the recommendation listed within the “Consent Agenda” be approved. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

START OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 
REPORT 
 
*3. Multicultural Community Festival Task Force Membership  

– File: 10-4870-01-0001/2022 
 

Report: Acting Director, Community and Partner Engagement, December 6, 2022 
 
Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Acting Director, Community and Partner 
Engagement, dated December 6, 2022, entitled “Multicultural Community Festival 
Task Force Membership”: 
 
THAT the Terms of Reference for the Multicultural Community Festival Task Force 
be amended to include a representative appointed by both the Squamish Nation and 
Tsleil-Waututh Nation; 
 
AND THAT the Mayor, on behalf of Council, write to the Squamish Nation and Tsleil-
Waututh Nation, inviting them to appoint a representative to sit on the Multicultural 
Community Festival Task Force. 

(CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY) 
 

END OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 
REPORT 
 
4. Temporary Use Permit – 1311 Lonsdale Avenue – Temporary Sales Office 

– File: 08-3400-20-0103/1 
 

Report: Planner 1, November 30, 2022 
 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 1, dated November 30, 2022, entitled 
“Temporary Use Permit – 1311 Lonsdale Avenue – Temporary Sales Office”: 
 
THAT Temporary Use Permit No. PLN2022-00031 (Three Shores), to permit a sales 
office at 1311 Lonsdale Avenue for a 3-year term, be considered and referred to a 
Public Meeting; 
 
AND THAT notification be circulated in accordance with the Local Government Act. 

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 3 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of December 12, 2022 

PRESENTATION 
 

2023 Utility Budgets, Rates and Bylaw Updates – Chief Financial Officer and 
Director, Engineering, Parks and Environment 

 
The Chief Financial Officer and Director, Engineering, Parks and Environment provided a 
PowerPoint presentation regarding the “2023 Utility Budgets, Rates and Bylaw Updates” 
and responded to questions of Council. 
 
Councillor Girard left the meeting at 7:37 pm and returned at 7:38 pm 
 
REPORT 
 
5. 2023 Utility Rates – File: 05-1820-04-0001/2023 
 

Report: Chief Financial Officer and Director, Engineering, Parks and Environment, 
November 23, 2022 

 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor Back 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Chief Financial Officer and Director, Engineering, 
Parks and Environment, dated November 23, 2022, entitled “2023 Utility Rates”: 
 
THAT the 2023 Utilities Budgets and the 2023-2027 Utilities Capital Plan, dated 
November 23, 2022, be endorsed; 
 
AND THAT the following bylaws be considered: 
 

• “Water Utility Bylaw, 1994, No. 6417, Amendment Bylaw, 2022, No. 8953”; 
•  “Sewerage and Drainage Utility Bylaw, 1995, No. 6746, Amendment Bylaw, 

2022, No. 8954”; and 
•  “Solid Waste Management Service Bylaw, 1997, No. 6920, Amendment 

Bylaw, 2022, No. 8955”. 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
BYLAWS – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS 
 
6. “Water Utility Bylaw, 1994, No. 6417, Amendment Bylaw, 2022, No. 8953” 
 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor Back 
 

THAT “Water Utility Bylaw, 1994, No. 6417, Amendment Bylaw, 2022, No. 8953” be 
given first and second readings. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor Back 
 

THAT “Water Utility Bylaw, 1994, No. 6417, Amendment Bylaw, 2022, No. 8953” be 
given third reading. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 4 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of December 12, 2022 

BYLAWS – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS – Continued  
 
7. “Sewerage and Drainage Utility Bylaw, 1995, No. 6746, Amendment Bylaw, 2022, 

No. 8954” 
 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor Back 
 

THAT “Sewerage and Drainage Utility Bylaw, 1995, No. 6746, Amendment Bylaw, 
2022, No. 8954” be given first and second readings. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor Back 
 

THAT “Sewerage and Drainage Utility Bylaw, 1995, No. 6746, Amendment Bylaw, 
2022, No. 8954” be given third reading. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

8. “Solid Waste Management Service Bylaw, 1997, No. 6920, Amendment Bylaw, 2022, 
No. 8955” 

 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor Back 
 

THAT “Solid Waste Management Service Bylaw, 1997, No. 6920, Amendment 
Bylaw, 2022, No. 8955” be given first and second readings. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor Back 
 

THAT “Solid Waste Management Service Bylaw, 1997, No. 6920, Amendment 
Bylaw, 2022, No. 8955” be given third reading. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
REPORT 
 
9. 2022 Extension of Funding Requests – File: 05-1705-30-0019/2022 
 

Report: Chief Financial Officer, November 30, 2022 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Chief Financial Officer, dated November 30, 2022, 
entitled “2022 Extension of Funding Requests”:  
 
THAT Funding Appropriation Nos. 1904 and 2052 for $46,347.62 – Electric Vehicle 
Strategy Implementation, be extended until December 31, 2024; 
 
THAT Funding Appropriation No. 1925 for $55,957.00 – NS Balanced Housing 
Innovation Lab, be extended until December 31, 2024; 
 

Continued… 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 5 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of December 12, 2022 

REPORT – Continued  
 
9. 2022 Extension of Funding Requests – File: 05-1705-30-0019/2022 – Continued  
 

THAT Funding Appropriation No. 1901 for $83,746.34 – PeopleSoft HCM Reporting, 
be extended until December 31, 2023; 
 
THAT Funding Appropriation Nos. 1931 and 8742 for $1,090,137.39 – Casano 
Loutet Overpass, be extended until December 31, 2024; 
 
THAT Funding Appropriation No. 1925 for $31,349.05 – Affordable Housing 
Initiatives, be extended until December 31, 2023; 
 
THAT Funding Appropriation No. 1901 for $15,000 – 2019 Fire Hall Maintenance 
and Repair, be extended until December 31, 2023 and reallocated into project Data 
and Analytics Platform; 
 
THAT Funding Appropriation No. 1901 for $15,000 – 2019 Operation Centre 
Maintenance and Repair, be extended until December 31, 2023 and reallocated into 
project Data and Analytics Platform; 
 
AND THAT should any of the extended amounts remain unexpended as at their new 
expiry date, the unexpended balances shall be returned to the credit of the 
respective fund. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

PUBLIC CLARIFICATION PERIOD 
 

Nil. 
 
COUNCIL INQUIRIES / REPORTS 
 

Nil. 
 
NEW ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 

Nil. 
 
NOTICES OF MOTION 
 

Nil. 
 
ADJOURN 
 
Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor Shahriari 
 
 THAT the meeting adjourn. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

The meeting adjourned at 8:08 pm. 
 
 

“Certified Correct by the Corporate Officer” 
____________________________________ 
CORPORATE OFFICER 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



Document Number: 2304941 V1 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL HELD 
ELECTRONICALLY FROM CITY HALL, 141 WEST 14TH STREET, NORTH 
VANCOUVER, BC, ON THURSDAY, DECEMBER 15, 2022 

 
 
PRESENT 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 

 
 
STAFF MEMBERS 
 

Mayor L. Buchanan 
Councillor H. Back 
Councillor A. Girard 
Councillor S. Shahriari 
 
ABSENT 
 
Councillor D. Bell 
Councillor J. McIlroy 
Councillor T. Valente 
 

B. Pearce, Deputy CAO / Director, Strategic and 
Corporate Services 

K. Graham, Corporate Officer 
 

The meeting was called to order at 9:30 am. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor Back 
 
1. Special Regular Council Meeting Agenda, December 15, 2022 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 

THAT the recommendations listed within the “Consent Agenda” be approved. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
START OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 
BYLAWS – ADOPTION 
 
*2. “Water Utility Bylaw, 1994, No. 6417, Amendment Bylaw, 2022, No. 8953” 
 
Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 

THAT “Water Utility Bylaw, 1994, No. 6417, Amendment Bylaw, 2022, No. 8953” be 
adopted, signed by the Mayor and Corporate Officer and affixed with the corporate 
seal. 

(CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY) 
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 2 Special Regular Council Meeting Minutes of December 15, 2022 

CONSENT AGENDA – Continued 
 
BYLAWS – ADOPTION – Continued 
 
*3. “Sewerage and Drainage Utility Bylaw, 1995, No. 6746, Amendment Bylaw, 2022, No. 

8954” 
 
Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 

THAT “Sewerage and Drainage Utility Bylaw, 1995, No. 6746, Amendment Bylaw, 
2022, No. 8954” be adopted, signed by the Mayor and Corporate Officer and affixed 
with the corporate seal. 

(CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY) 
 
*4. “Solid Waste Management Service Bylaw, 1997, No. 6920, Amendment Bylaw, 2022, 

No. 8955” 
 
Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 

THAT “Solid Waste Management Service Bylaw, 1997, No. 6920, Amendment Bylaw, 
2022, No. 8955” be adopted, signed by the Mayor and Corporate Officer and affixed 
with the corporate seal. 

(CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY) 
 
END OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 
ADJOURN 
 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor Shahriari 
 
 THAT the meeting adjourn. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:31 am. 
 
 
“Certified Correct by the Corporate Officer” 
__________________________________ 
CORPORATE OFFICER 



 
 
 
 
 
 

Office of the Mayor 
  

CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
 

BRITISH COLUMBIA 
 

cÜÉvÄtÅtà|ÉÇ 
 

 

ALZHEIMER’S AWARENESS MONTH 
 

j{xÜxtá  Alzheimer’s disease and other forms of dementia are degenerative 

brain disorders affecting thousands of people across British Columbia 

and early detection can provide individuals and their families the 

chance to adjust to the diagnosis and plan for the future; 

j{xÜxtá  all British Columbians can become better informed to bring about 

more support for the social, emotional and financial impacts 

experienced by persons with dementia, their families, caregivers and 

communities;  

j{xÜxtá  the Alzheimer Society of BC offers support, information and education 

to families, health care professionals and the public through their 

dementia‐friendly community initiatives, and support for research is 

designed to reduce stigma and build more inclusive communities; and 

j{xÜxtá  for this year’s theme the Alzheimer’s Society of Canada has announced 

a nation‐wide campaign reminding people that the Alzheimer Society 

is the First Link® to Support, Community, Knowledge and Expertise; 

aÉã g{xÜxyÉÜx  I, Linda Buchanan, Mayor of the City of North Vancouver, do hereby 

proclaim January 2023 as Alzheimer’s Awareness Month in the City 

of North Vancouver, the traditional territories of the Squamish and 

Tsleil‐Waututh Nations. 

 
So proclaimed on Monday, January 16, 2023 

 

__________________________________ 

Mayor Linda Buchanan 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 











































1

Karla Graham

Subject: Delegation request for St. Andrews

On Wed, Nov 16, 2022 at 9:36 AM Dennis Hilton <dennis@successfulbusinessinc.com> wrote: 

Good Morning Karla 

I write to you requesting a delegation meeting with Council about the City's redesign of St. Andrews, from 
Keith to 13th. 

The City has implemented a pilot project on St. Andrews.  675 residents have signed a petition started by 
Wendy Neilsen, 725 St. Andrews, asking the City to revise the design. 

A second petition was started asking residents to review an alternative design, and agree to these three 
statements  

Petition title: Residents in Favour of a Different Design for St. Andrews. 

1. I fully support finding ways to reduce traffic volume and
average speeds on St. Andrews that increases public safety.

2. In my opinion the current design decreases public safety.

3. I have read the alternative plan and reviewed the
representative drawing of the street and ask the City of North
Vancouver to consider it as a viable alternative.

As of today we have 675 resident signatures, with more on the way. 

We will use a PowerPoint Presentation to outline the following: 

 St. Andrews historically speaking for vehicles and bikes
 The way that St. Andrews was designed and what that original design can tolerate at Keith, 8th,

10th and 12th.
 The varying widths of the street and what has been lost with the City's design
 The residents' safety concerns introduced by the City's plan
 The pros and cons of using stop signs and speed bumps to calm traffic, reduce speeds and

bypass drivers
 Is street parking an asset or a liability? - Residents see it as an asset to public safety in their

design.
 Inside vs curbside mobility lane and the impact on safety



2

 Linking the past with the Residents' Alternative Design
 Other issues impacting public safety on the street that are not part of the the City's St Andrews

Safety Improvements Project

We would like to present on the same day or earlier that City staff will be coming back to Council with their 
updated plan. 

Sincerely 

Dennis Hilton 

for the Residents' Alternative Design Plan 

Brad Hodson 
Joanne Laubach 
Wendy Neilsen 
Gord and Tyla Doyle 
Charles Taylor 
Josie Loerich 
Karen Hilton 

























S:J!Y 
vancouver 



/ & / ~ )/V1 
Department Department Director CAO 
Manager Manager 

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

ENGINEERING, PARKS & ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT 

INFORMATION REPORT 

To: Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council 

Elicia Elliott, Manager, Transportation Planning 
Justin Hall, Manager, Public Realm Infrastructure 

From: 

Subject: WINTER 2023 MOBILITY STRATEGY IMPLEMENTATION UPDATE 

Date: January 4, 2023 File No: 16-8350-20-0036/1 

PURPOSE 

This report provides an update on the implementation of the Council-endorsed Mobility 
Strategy. It includes an overview of the Mobility Strategy, progress made to-date, and 
information on near-term priorities. 

BACKGROUND 

Mobility Strategy Overview 

The City's Mobility Strategy was developed by staff in reflection of 
previous plans, established and emerging policy and technical expertise, 

, and community knowledge and input. The Mobility Strategy was endorsed 
by Council in April 2022, and includes a collaboratively-developed vision 
and goals: 

The Mobility Strategy provides our vision for the City of North Vancouver's transport system ... 
' 

' 

Healthy streets that work for everyone 

supported by four community goals ... 

Our streets will 
help our City prosper 
and be a vibrant place 

I 

Our streets will 
support real and 

accessible travel choices 

Figure 1: Mobility Strategy vision and goals 

Document Number: 2304109 V1 

Our streets will 
be safe and 
comfortable 

Our streets will 
reduce our impact on 

climate change and the 
environment 



INFORMATION REPORT: Winter 2023 Mobility Strategy Implementation Update 
Date: January 4, 2023 

With tl;i1s foundational vision and bold goals, the Strategy guides how the City will plan, 
p'rioritize, operate, maintain, and invest in our transportation system over the next 
decade. The section that follows highlights some of the early successes of the Strategy. 

DISCUSSION 

Celebrating Recent Success 

The City has been a leader in delivering a range of transportation 
initiatives in recent years that have led to improvements in safety, 
comfort, and reliability. The Mobility Strategy provides a blueprint to 
further focus the City's efforts on how we create healthy streets for 
everyone. Significant recent progress has included: 

• Creating more travel options by expanding our Mobility Lane 
network and supporting initial planning and engagement for 
projects such as the Upper Levels Greenway; 

• Delivering safer and comfortable streets for all travelers, such 
as the Ridgeway Slow Streets pilot, and construction of 
Esplanade Complete Street; 

• Adding frequent and reliable transit services to better connect people on the 
North Shore, such as the R2 RapidBus; 

• Making it easier to walk and roll to school through our Safe and Active School 
Travel Program; and 

• Launching an e-bikeshare service on the North Shore that has generated nearly 
70,000 trips since inception, and preparing for the next phase of e-bikeshare 
services, along with observations and analysis from the private e-scooter pilot 
being applied to the network. 

Near-term Priorities 

There are nearly 200 actions in the Mobility Strategy that have been strategically 
prioritized for near-term action . Our proposed focus in 2023 is to advance initiatives that 
reflect: 

• what we heard and continue to hear through engagement with stakeholders and 
the public 

• what we value and want to achieve as stated in the Mobility Strategy's vision 
and goals 

• where there is necessity or urgency concerning safety, travel time reliability, 
and social or environmental considerations 

• where there is opportunity to be bold or to integrate with parallel projects at the 
local, North Shore, or regional level 

Page 2 of 11 



INFORMATION REPORT: Winter 2023 Mobility Strategy Implementation Update 
Date: January 4, 2023 

Staff propose the following key priorities for exploration in 2023: 

1. Burrard Inlet Rapid Transit & Translink's 10-Year Priorities 
2. Curbspace Management Framework 
3. Reducing Neighbourhood Speed Limits 
4. Micromobility Portfolio 
5. Neighbourhood & Intersection Improvements 
6. Network Improvements 
7. Safe & Active School Travel Planning & Implementation 
8. Mobility Requirements for Developments 
9. Ongoing Work that Underpins Mobility Strategy Implementation 

1. Burrard Inlet Rapid Transit (BIRT) & Translink's Ten Year Priorities 

In 2018, the Integrated North Shore Transportation Planning Project (INSTPP) identified 
the need to explore opportunities for improving transportation options across the 
Burrard Inlet to alleviate road congestion for people travelling to and from the North 
Shore. One of the near-term actions identified was to investigate implementation of 
rapid transit across Burrard Inlet to the North Shore (BIRT, or Burrard Inlet Rapid 
Transit) . This included a Feasibility Analysis of rapid transit across Burrard Inlet 
undertaken in 2020, and a Benefits Assessment (i.e., Economic Impact Analysis) 
undertaken in 2021. 

These studies provided a strong rationale for the 
inclusion of BIRT in Translink's Regional 
Transportation Strategy (Transport 2050), and the 
subsequent 10-Year Priorities. Now, the project will 
enter into Translink's Business Case development 
process. Thanks to the significant work that has 
already occurred relating to the problem statement, 
feasibility analysis, and benefits analysis, development 
of a Refined Business Case can begin in earnest. 
Translink will lead this work through 2023, which 
includes: 

A business case is an evidence
based document that defines a 
problem or solution, and 
evaluates one or more 
interventions to assess 
qualitative and quantitative costs 
and benefits. Business cases 
support decision-making toward 
making informed, evidence
based, transparent, and 
accountable decisions. 

• advancing business case development to confirm whether the ultimate 
technology will be BRT, Light Rail Transit, or SkyTrain (or a combination) 

• confirming the associated alignment, station locations, and degree of grade 
separation including options for a dedicated transit crossing of Burrard Inlet 

In addition to studying rapid transit, Translink has committed to focus near-term efforts 
on: 

• Increasing bus service and transit priority measures, as feasible, between 
Park Royal and Metrotown to improve bus travel times, and grow ridership in 
advance of a more permanent rapid transit investment 

• RapidBus between Lynn Valley and Downtown (via Lonsdale) 
• Improved SeaBus service (off-peak frequencies & extending start/end times) 
• New transit service areas (Harbourside) 
• Planned regional service along Sea-to-Sky Corridor 

Page 3 of 11 



INFORMATION REPORT: Winter 2023 Mobility Strategy Implementation Update 
Date: January 4, 2023 

INSTPP rightly identified that there is not a single project that can alleviate congestion, 
travel time reliability, or any of the myriad related problems experienced locally, across 
the north shore, and across the region. Rather, INSTPP encouraged, "a cross
jurisdictional and multi-pronged approach that coordinates transportation and land use 
planning to improve transportation options, increases the competitiveness of walking, 
cycling, and public transit, and encourages behavioural change". 

The City of North Vancouver will continue to work at staff and elected levels as partners 
in North Shore Connects, a partnership between the District of West Vancouver, 
Squamish Nation, City of North Vancouver, District of North Vancouver, and Tsleil
Waututh Nation. North Shore Connects works in collaboration with Translink and the 
BC Provincial government to advance BIRT and other pertinent transportation studies. 

westvancouver ~1,ty 
vancouver t 

Figure 2: North Shore Connects partnership 

2. Curbspace Management Framework 

In the City of North Vancouver, over 90% of the City's curb space is dedicated to vehicle 
parking. This leaves less room for a growing number of other uses, including transit, 
ride-hailing and taxis, bikes and scooters, and delivery vehicles, all of which need a safe 
space to pull over. 

Curb space is also valuable for activating the public realm through restaurant patios and 
creating more space for people to socialize and spend time. Tailoring our street design 
and curb space allocation through parking management to prioritize a range of functions 
will create a more complete mobility network that enhances efficiency, prosperity, and 
liveability. 

The Mobility Strategy outlines a series of actions and strategies to rebalance the space 
along our curbs to meet a wider range of needs. This includes a review of existing curb 
space uses across the City, and ensuring there are sufficient loading zones, pick-up and 
drop-off zones, and accessible parking spots in high-demand locations. This will also 
include a review of opportunities for setting and adjusting parking prices for on- and off
street facilities. 

Curbside management, and particularly vehicle parking , is a complex topic, and shifts in 
one policy or regulation can drastically impact another area. Developing a curbside 
management framework that is efficient, effective, and implementable will require a 
multifaceted, phased approach informed by stakeholder and pub.lie engagement. 

3. Reducing Neighbourhood Speed Limits 

Staff frequently receive concerns from the community that vehicles are travelling too 
fast on all streets, including local streets and lanes. Although vehicles are often 

Page 4 of 11 



INFORMATION REPORT: Winter 2023 Mobility Strategy Implementation Update 
Date: January 4, 2023 

travelling under the posted speed limit on local streets, there is an opportunity to reduce 
the traveling speeds of vehicles and increase real and perceived safety. 

If a person on 
foot is hit by a 
car travelUng at 

30 kpl1 

0201 

A. Chanceofsurvlval A, Chanceofdeath 

90% 10% 

ii 

A.AAA.AA.AA.A A 
50% 50% 

10% 90% 

A person walking or rolling hit 
by a car travelling at 50 km/h 
has only a 10% chance of 
survival. The same person hit 
by a car travelling at 30 km/h 
has a 90% chance of survival. 
Vehicle speeds are the main 
determinant of injury severity 
in an incident, particularly for 
vulnerable road users (i.e., 
people walking or rolling). 

Figure 3: Vehicle speed impacts on 
vulnerable road users. 

Reducing vehicle speeds is one component of developing safe streets, alongside street 
design, enforcement, and education; all priorities identified in the Mobility Strategy. 

4. Advancing Micromobility and New Mobility 

The City, in partnership with the District of North 
Vancouver and District of West Vancouver, is enabling 
growth in Micromobility across the North Shore with a 
range of initiatives. 

Lime E-Bike Share Pilot 

Micromobinty: Travel using 
small, lightweight devices such 
as e-bikes or a-scooters that 
can be powered by people or 
through electric-assist. See 
active transportation arid 
sustainable modes. 

The Lime E-bikeshare pilot will be extending into 2023, and will include additional 
monitoring and reporting for an improved understanding of how riders are using the 
service, and what opportunities there are for further optimization. The program has been 
operating since the summer of 2021 and has logged almost 75,000 trips, which equates 
to over 100,000 lbs of CO2 diverted compared to if the trip was taken by a vehicle. 

E-Cargo Bike Pilot Feasibility 
The City is also investigating the feasibility of an e-cargo bike share pilot project for 
multi-unit rental buildings. The focus of the pilot is to understand how many vehicle trips 
can be diverted to an e-cargo bike if one is made available, and to better understand the 
financial, equity, and physical space barriers to e-bike ownership, by targeting rental 
buildings which have a range of household incomes. 

E-Scooter Pilot 
The City of North Vancouver is participating in an e-scooter pilot in coordination with the 
Provincial Government and neighbouring municipalities on the North Shore. The pilot 
started in March 2022 after bylaw changes were adopted by Council, and will continue 
until April 2024. 

Page 5 of 11 



INFORMATION REPORT: Winter 2023 Mobility Strategy Implementation Update 
Date: January 4, 2023 

The City's pilot allows privately-owned e-scooters for personal use on local streets, 
multi-use pathways, and in mobility lanes. This pilot project is evaluating how e-scooters 
are being used to achieve active transportation objectives, and also reviewing safety 
implications of e-scooters on our streets. 

Ride-Hailing provided by Transportation Network Services Companies 

The City allows and supports the use of ride-hailing as 
another method to travel. This creates more mobility 
options, especially for people who do not have access to 
a private vehicle. The Province of BC oversees which 
companies are provided a valid licence to operate in a 
service area through their Passenger Transportation 
Board. 

City staff are working with the District of North Vancouver 
as well as a Translink Data Analytics Sub-committee on 
the topic of ride-hailing to better understand the travel 
patterns and behaviours of trips on the North Shore. 

Ride-hailing is a form of 
transportation provided by 
Transportation Network 
Services (TNS), companies 
that connect a driver using 
their personal vehicle with a 
customer seeking a ride 
through a digital platform. You 
might be familiar with ride
hailing platto·rms such as Uber 
and Lyft, among others. 

The City requires TNSs to apply and maintain a congestion and curbside management 
permit (CCMP) to operate on our streets. This provides data for the City to understand 
how our streets are being used by ride-hailing services, and includes fees for pick-ups 
and drop-offs to support curbside improvements, maintenance, and future planning for 
efficient operations (e.g ., installing a passenger loading zone in a high-demand 
location) . 

Approved ride-hailing companies fulfilled more than 1,000,000 monthly trips in the 
Lower Mainland in May 2021 (the latest month for which data are publicly available), 
according to the Passenger Transportation Board. Staff will be able to report out to 
Council more frequently and with more recent data now that a data-sharing agreement 
has been finalized between BC Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure, Translink, 
and several municipalities in the Metro Vancouver region. 

Micromobility and New Mobility are proving useful as a way for more people to get 
around without needing to rely on a vehicle. We know through mobility surveys that 
residents and visitors often find that the hilly terrain on the North Shore is a main 
deterrent from choosing to walk or bike. Electric-assist devices are helping minimize this 
barrier, and providing ways to connect to key transit hubs for more regional mobility. 

5. Neighbourhood & Intersection Improvements 

The City's Engineering department is responsible for the physical changes to City 
streets and the public realm that help advance the vision of the Mobility Strategy. Each 
year, in coordination with other City departments, Engineering brings forward proposed 
programs and projects within the capital plan for Council's consideration. The capital 
plan includes items to address safety and reliability on our streets. 

Page 6 of 11 



INFORMATION REPORT: Winter 2023 Mobility Strategy Implementation Update 
Date: January 4, 2023 

Neighbourhood Traffic Safety 
Safety improvements address small, site- and neighbourhood-specific safety issues 
across the City. Treatments include new and updated traffic signs, pavement markings, 
raised crosswalks and other traffic calming elements (speed humps, bump outs, etc.). 
Improvements are identified via input from the community, and prioritized through data 
collection and analysis prepared by City staff. 

Intersection Improvements 
The installation of traffic signals, crosswalk beacons, and other crossing treatments at 
intersections is necessary to improve the safety and function of intersections for all 
modes of transportation. 

Treatments are determined and prioritized through a warrant approach, based on 
pedestrian and vehicular traffic volumes. A recent example of this program in action is 
the new signals on Lonsdale at Keith (north side) and 12th Streets where pedestrian 
safety has been improved. 

Pedestrian and Roadway Lighting Implementation 
This program improves comfort and safety of all roadway users by executing on the 
Street Lighting Implementation Plan (2019). The program is currently focused on 
intersections where conflict between users are most likely to occur. 

6. Network Improvements 

Similar to the neighbourhood and intersection improvements listed above, the City's 
Engineering Department refers to the Mobility Strategy and other policy documents to 
prioritize and deliver improvements across the entire street network. 

New Sidewalks to Complete the Pedestrian Network 
The City delivers new sidewalk segments where there are gaps in the network. Current 
efforts are focused on the delivery of segments near schools to improve the safety and 
accessibility for students and parents. The program has identified segments directly 
connecting Sutherland and Carson Graham Secondary Schools as the highest priorities 
for delivery in 2023. 

Priority Mobility Network Improvements 
This City program executes on the consultation, design and construction of priority 
corridors identified in the Council approved Priority Mobility Network Strategy (2019). 

The objective of this program is to increase the number of kilometers of protected 
mobility infrastructure by delivering key north-south and east-west corridors. Projects 
are prioritized based on approved evaluation criteria including roadway classification, 
usership and access to areas of employment. 

Current efforts are on completing the Esplanade Street project, building the Casano
Loutet Overpass and the design and engagement of the Upper Levels Greenway. The 
next priorities for Council's consideration include the Mid-town connector which is the 
second busiest route for existing users transecting Central Lonsdale from Grand 

Page 7 of 11 



INFORMATION REPORT: Winter 2023 Mobility Strategy Implementation Update 
Date: January 4, 2023 

Boulevard to Marine Drive and Carson Graham School Area Active Transportation 
Improvements connecting the Green Necklace on Jones to the Jones Overpass. 

Transit Network Improvements 
This initiative supports the ongoing adjustments to the roadway network to improve the 
level of service and reliability of transit to encourage ridership growth. Interventions are 
prioritized based on data provided by Translink that highlight areas with the greatest 
speed and reliability issues. 

Recent improvements have included the westbound transit lane on Keith Road 
approaching Bewicke that services 21,000 passengers per week. Current efforts are 
focused on a reducing the eastbound variability of the R2 Rapidbus between 
Queensbury and Brooksbank through the Kennard Avenue/3rd Street/Low Level Road 
intersection by adding a bus lane with 100% funding support from Translink. 

The City is also seeking grant funding from Translink in 2023 that will enable further 
study of Bus Speed and Reliability improvements that could support bus, active 
transportation, and future rapid transit improvements. 

7. Safe & Active School Travel Planning & Implementation 

The City, in partnership with the North Vancouver School District, works with schools to 
encourage safe and healthy school travel habits through outreach and improvements to 
the transportation infrastructure around schools. 

The City has worked with nearly all local schools to develop school travel plans and 
action plans since Safe & Active School Travel Planning (SASTP) program was 
launched in 2013. This has coincided with a range of infrastructure improvements and 
programs delivered for further increased sustainable mode share amongst school-aged 
children and youth: 

• Safe Routes to School Infrastructure Program: This includes infrastructure 
improvements based on action plans developed with the involvement of schools, 
and general feedback that is received from school communities, PACs, and the 
North Shore Safety Council. 

• Walking School Bus: The City oversaw the operations of a Walking School Bus 
program at all public elementary schools for the 2021-2022 school year. The 
program is exploring options for a 2023 re-launch . The City is working with 
Translink to find a new delivery partner for the program. 

• School Cycling Education: School-based cycling education is delivered to all 
schools for grades 5/6 on a two year cycle to ensure that all students have 
received cycling education by the time they graduate grade 6. 

• Ridgeway Elementary Slow Speed Pilot: In 2021, the Ridgeway neighbourhood 
decreased its speed limits to 30 km/h, beyond immediately adjacent school 
boundaries. This is with recognition that children and youth are just as likely to 
walk as being driven within 2 km when travelling to and from school. 

Page 8 of 11 



INFORMATION REPORT: Winter 2023 Mobility Strategy Implementation Update 
Date: January 4, 2023 

In 2021-2022, City staff undertook an assessment of existing school travel programs to 
refresh the City's Safe and Active School Travel Program (SASTP). Key findings of that 
assessment include: 

• Infrastructure improvements remain an important part of school travel planning 
programs, and areas beyond the immediate school zone should be considered . 

• Having children share ideas about active travel with their parents is effective. School 
active travel education (e.g., cycling skills training) should include a take-home 
component where possible. 

• There are capacity challenges with maintaining program momentum: programs 
should be supported by a range of school-based stakeholders, as administrators 
have limited capacity. 

• Having a dedicated school travel planning position within the school system helps 
support the ongoing sustainability of the program. 

• Stable funding agreements are key to program success. 

The Mobility Strategy's vision of creating healthy streets that work for everyone begins 
with planning and designing for our most vulnerable road users, including children. 

8. Mobility Requirements for Developments 

As our City continues to grow over the next decade, new developments' infrastructure 
and programs can help residents and employees access more travel options that make 
it easier to move around without needing to rely on a vehicle. By prioritizing walkable 
and transit-oriented communities across the City, this can enable "car-light" lifestyles 
and shorter trips. 

The Mobility Strategy aims to support sustainable mobility through how growth and 
development occur. In order to make this happen, the City requires modernized 
requirements , policies, and procedures that will allow the City to better support and 
enable the kind of growth and development that will contribute to helping us meet our 
goals. Modernized direction will support a more predictable development process, and 
will allow for a right-sized approach of different requirements for different locations and 
land-use circumstances. 

The Mobility Strategy has a target to not increase vehicle trips during peak hours. 
Transportation studies for developments are an important pathway for achieving this 
target. 

Likewise, it will be important to establish a clear set of TOM requirements for different 
development types and locations, and an approach for monitoring effectiveness of 
various initiatives over time. 

9. Ongoing Work that Underpins Mobility Strategy Implementation 

Regional Collaboration 
City staff collaborate closely on a range of mobility topics through regional committees 
and sub-committees coordinated by Translink and Metro Vancouver. This includes 
topics such as understanding the impacts of ride-hailing , facilitating last-mile urban 

Page 9 of 11 



INFORMATION REPORT: Winter 2023 Mobility Strategy Implementation Update 
Date: January 4, 2023 

freight and invisible freight in our region, contributing input to a regional parking 
strategy, and improving the conditions through which more companies can participate in 
travel demand management. 

North Shore Transportation Survey & Data Analysis 
The City conducts a bi-annual North Shore Transportation Survey in coordination with 
the District of North Vancouver and District of West Vancouver. This longitudinal survey 
helps with understanding how travel patterns and behaviours change over time. The 
reporting includes a 24-hour recall survey on trip location, distances, and mode use. It 
also includes stated preference questions on immediate issues and opportunities (such 
as the use of e-bike share, or the impacts of COVID-19 on travel patterns). 

The City gathers data on our streets and behaviour patterns through a range of other 
instruments. Vehicle, cycling, and walking data is frequently collected, and in some 
locations staff have access to ongoing data collection. By establishing an ongoing 
transportation data collection framework, staff will be able to use local insights, along 
with the North Shore-wide Transportation Survey (and regional data such as 
Translink's Regional Trip Diary) to help with decision-making processes for mobility 
improvements. 

Communications, Education & Engagement 
Significant public and stakeholder engagement will be conducted throughout this work. 
Understanding public and stakeholder issues, concerns, views, and preferences will be 
important for refining how alternatives are planned , designed, evaluated , and 
implemented. 

Similarly, Planning staff will work closely with the City's Communications team to create 
effective education campaigns where appropriate, given many of these initiatives are 
complex and are being implemented as city-wide improvements. 

NEXT STEPS 
Staff will continue to reference the Mobility Strategy as the policy foundation for 
advancing the initiatives listed in this report. There will be regular communication and 
engagement with Council, stakeholders, and the public as these project reach key 
milestones and decision points. 

INTER-DEPARTMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

These initiatives are anticipated to have cross-organizational benefits. Planning and 
Engineering Departments work in close collaboration to deliver on projects. Additional 
departments at the City, such as Community and Partner Engagement, and Finance, 
are also frequently communicated with as projects progress. Staff have begun 
conversations with North Vancouver City Fire Department and North Vancouver RCMP 
on initiatives that relate to safety and enforcement on our streets. Complete stakeholder 
mapping for partner organizations in the community will be completed at the start of 
each project process. 

Page 10 of 11 



INFORMATION REPORT: Winter 2023 Mobility Strategy Implementation Update 
Date: January 4, 2023 

STRATEGIC PLAN, OCP OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

These initiatives, as outlined in the Mobility Strategy, build on and support the vision of 
the City's Official Community Plan (2014). These initiatives also support the vision and 
all five priorities of Council's 2018-2022 Strategic Plan, with particular emphasis on a 
connected city, and exploring innovative solutions to transportation challenges. 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 

Elicia Ellitt 
Manager, Transportation Planning 

Justin Hall 
Manager, Public Realm Infrastructure 

Page 11 of 11 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



To: 

From: 

7?r3 . _!l!_ vlA 
Department Director CAO 
Manager 

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
' PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council 

Linden Maultsaid-Blair, Planner 1 

REPORT 

Subject: ZONING BYLAW AMENDMENT FOR 229 EAST 22ND STREET 
(BHARATI SHRESTHA, MAPLE BUILDING DESIGN) 

Date: January 4, 2023 File No: 08-3400-20-0080/1 

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution. 

RECOMMENDATION 

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 1, dated January 4, 2023, entitled 
"Zoning Bylaw Amendment for 229 East 22nd Street (Bharati Shrestha, Maple 
Building Design)": 

THAT the application submitted by Bharati Shrestha / Maple Building Design, to 
rezone the property located at 229 East 22nd Street from a RS-1 Zone to a RT-1 
Zone, be considered and no Public Hearing be held, in accordance with the Local 
Government Act; 

AND THAT notification be circulated in accordance with the Local Government 
Act. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Context Map (CityDocs #2235043) 

2. Architectural and Landscape Plans, dated November 17, 2022 (CityDocs #2299538) 

3. Public Consultation Summary (CityDocs #2189220) 
4. "Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2023, No. 8956" (CityDocs 

#2301340) 

SUMMARY 

This report presents a rezoning application to allow a duplex development consisting of 
two principal units with two accessory dwelling units in the basement level. 

Document Number: 2231776 V1 



REPORT: Zoning Bylaw Amendment for 229 East 22nd Street (Bharati Shrestha, Maple Building Design) 
Date: January 4, 2023 

BACKGROUND 

Applicant: Bharati Shrestha, Maple Building Design 

Designer: Maple Building Design & Consulting (MBDC) 

Official Community Plan Designation : Residential Level 2 (R2) 

Existing Zoning : RS-1 (one-unit residential) 

Applicable Guidelines: N/A 

DISCUSSION 

Site Context 

The subject site is located in the Central Lonsdale neighbourhood, on the south side of 
East 22nd Street between St. Georges and St. Andrews Avenues. The buildings and 
uses immediately surrounding the subject site are described in Table 1 below. 

Table 1. Surrounding Uses 

Direction Address Description Zoning 

North 228 East 22nd St Duplex RT-1 

South 228 East 21st St Duplex RT-1 

East 232 East 22nd St Duplex RT-1 

West 223 East 22nd St Singe-family development RS-1 

Policy Context 

The site and surrounding area have Official Community Plan (OCP) land use 
designation Residential Level 2 (R2) which allows for low density attached residential 
development. The intent of this designation is to provide a range of ground-oriented 
housing, including duplexes with secondary suites. The R2 designation allows for a 
maximum density of 0.5 FSR. 

Project Description 

The site currently contains a single-family home with no secondary suite. The proposal 
is to replace the existing building with a new duplex building, which will contain two 
principal dwelling units and two accessory dwelling units in the basement. The proposal 
cor:iforms to all the standard zoning requirements for the RT-1 zone, including height, 
density, setbacks, and lot coverage. 

Page 2 of 4 



REPORT: Zoning Bylaw Amendment for 229 East 22nd Street (Bharati Shrestha, Maple Building Design) 
Date: January 4, 2023 

Planning Analysis 

Use 
The policy framework applicable to the site supports the proposed development. The 
site is located in proximity to transit, recreation facilities, commercial areas, and schools. 
Additionally, the increase in units will contribute to additional housing supply through the 
provision of 'missing middle' development, as well as adding to the City's stock of rental 
suites. 

Intensity 
The proposal represents no increase in permitted maximum density, and only a 
moderate increase in the number of units. The density (floor area) permitted on the site 
will remain the same, at 0.5 times the lot area. The total number of permitted units will 
increase from three to four. Many of the surrounding properties are already zoned for 
duplexes. The proposal is consistent with the OCP and the planned character of the 
neighbourhood. 

Parking 
The proposed parking is one stall for each unit (principal and accessory), for a total of 
four. This is consistent with the requirements in the Zoning Bylaw and appropriate for 
this site, given its location. 

Building Form 
The proposed form of the development complies with all requirements in the RT-1 zone. 

Landscape & Trees 
There are no existing trees on the site. The proposal includes new landscaping with 
native species, including 6 small trees on site. Two new street trees will be installed as 
part of the development. 

ADVISORY BODY INPUT 

This small scale application is not subject to Advisory Design Panel (ADP) review. 

COMMUNITY CONSULTATION 

A Developer Information Session was held on July 2nd, 2022. There were three (3) 
attendees. Three (3) comment forms were submitted after the session. Comments 
received during and after the session included: 

• Concerns over excavation, foundation, and grading; and 
• Suggestions for energy efficiency and sustainability features . 

i 

In response, the applicant clarified the grading and retaining wall strategy for the 
excavation and foundation, and will be incorporating all required sustainable features, 
such as BC Building Code and City energy efficiency requirements, as well as electric 
vehicle charging. Therefore, staff are satisfied that the concerns have been 
appropriately addressed. 

Page 3 of 4 



REPORT: Zoning Bylaw Amendment for 229 East 22nd Street (Bharati Shrestha, Maple Building Design) 
Date: January 4, 2023 

Given the compliance with the OCP, as well as the small scale and compatibility with 
local context, staff recommend that no Public Hearing be held. Should Council wish to 
refer the application to a Public Hearing, the first active clause in the resolution should 
be amended to read: 

"THAT "Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2023, No. 8956" 
(Bharati Shrestha / Maple Building Design, 229 East 22nd Street, RT-1) be 
considered and referred to a Public Hearing;" 

CONCLUSION 

The proposal would allow for the development of a new duplex and suites, allowing a 
diversification of the residential housing stock in the city. Development of this type and 
scale is anticipated for this area. Staff support the application. 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 

Linden Maultsaid-Blair 
Planner 1 

Page 4 of 4 

.. 



E 22nd St E 22nd St

St
. A

nd
re

ws
 A

ve

E 21st St E 21st St

St
.G

e o
rg

e s
Av

e

1
5

7

2
4

9

2
5

8

2
5

2

2
2

9

2
3

6

2
4

5

2
1

1
8

2
4

9

2
5

7

1 2 3

2 1 3 2

2
4

2

2
1

2

2
0

5
7

2
0

6

2
1

0
0

2
5

3

2
1

3
3

2
4

3

2
2

3

2
5

5

2
1

8

2
6

5

2
1

7

2
2

0
8

2
1

0
6

2
1

2

2
2

1
2

2
4

3

3
0

9

2
3

9

1 4 3

2
2

8

2
4

6

2
0

7

2
2

4
0

3
0

7

2
2

5

2
3

5

2
1

3

1 4 4

2
4

8

2
5

8

2 0 1

2
6

8

2
1

1

2
5

2

2
2

2

2
3

1

2
1

4
5

2
1

9
2

1
8

2
0

5
3

2
3

2

2
6

8

2
3

8

3
0

4

2
1

5

2
0

4
8

2
2

8

2
2

2

2
5

3

2 4 1

2
1

4
2

2
1

9

2
3

3

2
4

0

2
5

9

2
3

2

2
5

9

2
1

1
2

0
8

2 1 6 0
2

0
3

2
0

5
2

2
3

7

Context Map: 229 East 22nd Street Subject Site
Legal_Parcels

thuckell
FreeText
Attachment 1�



EL=405.7
PP

MHTELUS RIMEL=4058
MH HYDRO

407.9

4 407.8

407.7

406.9

407.8

408.7

407.7
408.2

EL=431.8
ROOF PEAK

412.6

413.2

412.8

411.0

410.0
410.9

410.8

411
.2

411.2

411.2

WV

GM

EL=410.2
TOP WALL

EL=410.3
TOP WALL

EL=409.1
TOP WALL

EL=408.6
TOP WALL

EL=408.4
TOP WALL

411.3

410.7

410.3
410.4

410.1

409
.7

408.9

407.5
406.4

406.3
406.2

406.1

406.1
406.1

406.7

408.0

408.4

409.4

409
.8

410
.6

407.4

406.9

406.3 405
.7

405.3

406.7
406.6

406.5

406.6

407.9
408.4 408

.4

407
.0

406
.0

405
.8

407.0

406.6

406.9

408
.2

406.3

406
.9

407.0
407.9

408.3

408.5

408.4

408
.3

408.5

409.6

408
.8

407.0

407.3
407.5

407.1
407.2407.7

408.5

408.6

409.1

408.4

408
.5

408
.7

408
.8

409
.0

409
.2

409.6

EL=404.4
GARAGE SLAB

409
.0

416.7

409.4

409.8

410.3

412.2

411.7

411.1

410.6

410.2

409.8

410.1410.6

411.2

411.7

412.2

412.8

411
.1

410.7

411.4

411.6
410.7

411.3
411.2

410.9

412
.5

412
.4

412
.6

409
.7

407.7

406.0

RO
CK

/C
ON

CR
ET

E 
W

AL
L

13.0

48.6

EX. ASPHALT DRIVEWAY

WOOD
STAIRS

GUTTER
GUTTER

5.9' WIDE PROPOSED CONCRETE SIDEWALK

28.6

20.0

12.9 3.4

6.8

3.4

7.5

3.4

6.8

3.4

8.8

3.4

6.8

3.4

2.57.0

16.4

EDGE OF ASPHALTEDGE OF ASPHALT

EX
 . 

W
OO

D 
FE

NC
E 

TO
 B

E 
RE

M
OV

ED

EX. WOOD FENCE TO BE REMOVED

AREA = 6892 Sq. Ft.

PL  51.02

P 
L 

13
5.

09

6.8

6.6

28.7

28.7

W
O

O
D

 FE
N

C
E

40
8

41
0

412

406

406

41
2

410

SUNKEN PATIO

MAPLE BUILDING DESIGN
&  CONSULTING (MBDC)

P L 51.02

P 
L 

13
5.

09

EG 409.8

E+F 408.5 E+F 408.3

1.51' PL TO DRIVEWAY

PROPOSED TWO CAR
GARAGE

27' O/A

1.51' PL TO DRIVEWAY

20
' O

/A

48' DRIVEWAY XING

PARKING PAD
9.5'x20'

PARKING PAD

NW

W

SW

S

SE

E

NE

SITE  PLAN

5' PL TO FDN 5.02' PL TO FDN

ENTRY SLAB: 407.1ENTRY SLAB: 407.4 ENTRY SLAB: 406.7

ASPHALT

EX. ASPHALT DRIVEWAY

4' WIDE CONCRETE PATHWAY

TO BE REMOVED

GARDEN
LANDSCAPE

LANDSCAPE LANDSCAPE

LANDSCAPE

LANDSCAPE

61
.8

4'
  P

L 
TO

 M
AI

N 
FL

R

25
'

5'
 P

L 
TO

 F
DN

25
'

2'x2' PAVERS

COV. PORCH

26
' P

L 
TO

 F
DN

15
' P

L 
TO

 F
DN

61
.8

4'
 P

L 
TO

 F
DN

  (
BA

SE
ME

NT
)

TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY PLAN OF LOT 32 BLOCK 208 DL 546
GROUP 1 NWD PLAN 5481

CIVIC ADDRESS: 229 22ND ST EAST, NORTH
VANCOUVER
PID: 011-144-939

INTERLOCKING TILES 

COMPACTED GRAVEL

4'
14

'

SUNKEN PATIO

F+E 407.32 F+E 406.52

F+E 407.40

9.5'x20'

FG 412.0

COMPACTED GRAVEL

PERMEABLE (NO POLY UNDER)

COV. PORCH

PROPOSED DUPLEX

FG 412.0

F.
P

.

F.
P

.

41' (BUILDING WIDTH) O/A

44
.2

5'

47
.7

5'
  O

/A
 (D

EP
TH

 O
F 

TH
E 

BL
DG

.)

EG 410.6

56
.7

5'
  (

MA
IN

 F
LR

. F
ND

 T
O 

RE
AR

 D
EC

K)

EXISTING  ZONING -RS-1
PROPOSED ZONING - RT-1

LOT AREA: 6892 SFT

GFA (35%+1000 SFT)
ALLOWED

3411.24
PROPOSED

3412.2

SIDE WALKS

IMPERVIOUS SITE COVERAGE

DWELLING:

 REAR DECKS AND STAIR

1814.71

512.5

289.74

  DRIVEWAY  ASPHALT

4135.2IMPERV. 60%

240.0

TOTAL COVERAGE:

2412.2LOT  COVERAGE (35%) 2394.71

GARAGE 580.0

240.0

3772.91

GARAGE 580.0

COVERED DECK COVERED DECK

ENTRY SLAB: 407.1

PERMEABLE (NO POLY UNDER)

39
.8

4'

591.37

5'
 P

L 
TO

 F
DN

4R @7.5"

DN
RUN 12"
36" HANDRAIL

4R @7.5"
DN

RUN 12"
36" HANDRAIL

 FRONT PORCH AND STAIR

  SUNKEN PATIOS

95.96

23'

7

4' WIDE CONCRETE PATHWAY

4' WIDE CONCRETE PATHWAY

4' WIDE CONCRETE PATHWAY

EX
. C

ON
. W

AL
KW

AY
 T

O 
BE

 R
EM

OV
ED

3799.25

W
IN

. W
EL

L

W
IN

. W
EL

L

2.0' PL TO WIN. WELL 2.02' PL TO WIN. WELL

SITE DEVELOPMENT DATA

PARKING:
PARKING REQUIREMENT: 4 STALLS
PARKING PROVIDED: 4 STALLS

REFERENCE GRADE:
AVERAGE FRONT GRADE = (411+409.7)/2 =410.35'
AVERAGE REAR GRADE = (407.7+406)/2 = 406.85'
REFERENCE GRADE = 410.35+(406.85-410.35)x0.4=408.95'
MAX. WALL HEIGHT= 435.15'
MAX. ROOF RIDGE = 442.05'

MAX. ROOF RIDGE FOR GARAGE = 406.85 +15=421.85'

8.
82

'
3.

28
'

5.
9'

FG 412.0 FG 412.0

TO BE REMOVED

EAST 22 STREET

LANE 20' WIDE

E +F 406.62

EX . WOOD FENCE TO BE REMOVED

E+F 408.4 E+F 408.4

PROPOSED FOR GARAGE = 421.35'

ITEM 4.1

ITEM 2.1

ITEM 4.2

ITEM 4.4

NOTES:

26.24'

ITEM 4.6

* 0.9 m DEEP CONTINUOUS SOIL TRENCH TO ACCOMODATE "TURF -MIX" GROWING MEDIUM"
NOTES:

* ALL SOD TO BE CHAFER BEETLE RESISTANT OR SEEDED USING A CHAFER BEETLERESISTANT MIX
  (i.e. AT LEAST 70% TALL TURF-TYPE FESCUE AND AT LEAST 4% MICRO CLOVER BY WEIGHT)
* INSTALL 300 mm DEEP ROOT BARRIER ALONG FULL LENGTH OF FRONT OF PROPOSED SIDEWALK:
* PROVIDE A MINIMUM OF 25 CUBIC METERS OF SOIL PER TREE.

ITEM 4.5

* 6 cm CALIPER WITH 2m STANDARD
* 8m ON-CENTRE SOACING-CENTRE ON LOT FRONTAGE AND OVER WIDTH OF GRASS BOULEVARD;
* TALL TREE SPECIES TO BE CHOSEN (40ft OR TALLER ).

ITEM 4.3ITEM 4.3

EX. GUTTER

4

405.4

405.8406.7

407.2

407.5

ENTRY SLAB: 407.1

ROOF PEAK: 421.35'

ITEM 2.1

3.0' PL TO EAVE

3.0' PL TO EAVE

12.01' PL  TO FDN12.01' PL  TO FDN

ITEM 1.6

ITEM 5.1

2'x2' PAVERS

2'x2' PAVERS
2'x2' PAVERS

ITEM 1.6
(ROOF SLOPE: 5/12)

* CNV ARBORIST TO INSTALL 2 STREET TREES
* 6 CM CALIPER WITH 2 M STANDARD;
* 8M ON CENTRE SPACING-CENTRE ON LOT FRONTAGE
 AND OVER WITH THE GRASS BOULEVARD;
* TALL TREE SPECIES TO BE CHOOSEN (40ft or TALLER

thuckell
FreeText
Attachment 2�



CLOSET
CLOSET

LIN. CLOSET

KITCHEN /LIVING

BED RM

BED RM

MAPLE BUILDING DESIGN
&  CONSULTING (MBDC)

CLOSET

COV. PORCH

LIVING

11
'

3'

3'-6"

4'

KITCHEN 

DINING

FAMILY

41'

13'-2"

MECH. RMAC

3'
-1

1"

3'
-6

"
11

'

CELLAR  PLAN

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

6'
-1

0"

33'-8"
41'

20'-6" 20'-6"

11'-10"

10
'

9'

11'-10"

14
'-1

0"

11'-6"

10
'-6

"

18'-10"

1'-11" MAX O/S  OF GUTTER

ELEC. HWT
HEAT

3'-2"

COATS

3'-2"

HRV

15
'-4

"

12'-2"

5'
-9

"

3'-6"

4'
-7

"

48
'-3

"

7'-4" 13'-2"

3'
-1

1"
5'

-3
"

24
'-9

"
6'

-6
"

3'
-1

1"
SUNKEN PATIO

12
'-6

"

5'

4'
-4

"
7'

1'-10"

2'
-3

"

7'

16
'-5

"

15'-5"

13'-2"

2'

PWD

 PROPOSED FSR = 3411.24 SFT
PERMISSABLE  FSR = 3412.2 SFT

44
'-3

"

5'-1"

12'-7"

44
'-3

"

SUNKEN PATIO BELOW

13'-4" 7'-2" 7'-2"

12'-8" 8'-2"

41'

7'-4"

7'-4"

NW

W

SW

S

SE

E

NE

CLOSET CLOSET

KITCHEN /LIVING

BED RM

BED RM

13'-2"

MECH. RM

40
'-5

"
3'

-1
1"

3'
-6

"
11

'

11'-10"

10
'

9'

11'-10"

14
'-1

0"

11'-6"

10
'-5

"

18'-10"

3'-2"

COATS

3'-2"

SUNKEN PATIO

2'

12'-8"8'-2"

7'-4"

CLOSET

LIVING

11
'

3'

3'-6"

4'

KITCHEN 

DINING

FAMILY

6'
-1

0"

1'-11" MAX O/S  OF GUTTER

15
'-4

"

12'-2"

5'
-9

"

3'-6"

4'
-7

"

48
'-3

"

7'-4"

3'
-1

1"
5'

-3
"

24
'-9

"
6'

-6
"

3'
-1

1"

12
'-6

"

5'

4'
-4

"
7'

1'-10"

2'
-3

"

7'

16
'-5

"

15'-5"

PWD

44
'-3

"

5'-1"

12'-7"

SUNKEN PATIO BELOW

13'-4"

20'-6" 20'-6"

5'

13'-2"

AC AC

COVERED DECK COVERED DECK

TOTAL AREA = 1716.06 SFT

FOOTPRINT =1814.71 SFT

7'
2'

-9
"

COV. PORCH

6'
-5

"
5'

-1
"

2'
-4

"
4'

-8
"

4'
-8

"
5'

-5
"

11
'-1

1"

3'

5'
4'

-5
"

3'
-1

1"
6'

-5
"

5'
-1

"
2'

-4
"

4'
-8

"
4'

-8
"

5'
-5

"
11

'-1
1"

5'
4'

-6
"

3'

AC

AREA = 657.5 SFT
SECONDARY SUITE

AREA = 657.5 SFT
SECONDARY SUITE

LIN. CLOSET

HRV

11'10"X10'

49.35 sft 49.35 sft

11'10"X10'

11'10"X9'11'10"X9'

144.87 sft 144.87 sft

14'-2" 14'-2"

20
'-3

"

20
'-3

"

166.62 SFT 166.62 SFT

TOTAL AREA =1716.01 SFT
UTILITIES AREA =98.70 SFT

ITEM 2.2 ITEM 2.2

1'
-9

"
PUMP

HEAT
PUMP ELEC. HWT

SPACE FOR FUTURE  BIKE AND 
OUTDOOR EQUIPMENT STORAGE

SPACE FOR FUTURE  BIKE AND 
OUTDOOR EQUIPMENT STORAGE



MAPLE BUILDING DESIGN
&  CONSULTING (MBDC)

NW

W

SW

S

SE

E

NE

SECTION  B-B

KITCHEN /LIVING
MECH. RMCOATS

PWD RM

LIVING

W.I.C.LAUNDARYHALLWAYBATH

HALLWAY

HALLWAY

9'
9'

9'

SUNKEN PATIO

SPECIFICATIONS

1

2

3
4

5

6

7

8 10

COVERED DECK

43
'-9

"

41'

3'-5"

5'
-2

"

10
'

BED RM #3

ENSUITE

12
'-9

"

BED RM #2

CLOSET

MASTER BEDRM

W.I.C

20'-6"

3'-6"

3'
-6

"

6'-10"

12'-4"

10'

7'
-6

"

7'-10"

12'-4"

BATH

13'-7" 6'-11" 6'-11"

41'

3'
-1

1"

3'-5"

5'
-2

"

10
'-4

"

BED RM #3

12
'-9

"

CLOSET

MASTER BEDRM

W.I.C

20'-6"

3'-6"

3'
-6

"

6'-10"

12'-4"

10'

7'
-6

"
12'-4"

13'-7"

3'
-1

1"

20'-6" 20'-6"

12
'-1

"
10

'-4
"

7'
-1

0"
13

'-6
"

12
'-2

"
10

'-4
"

7'
-1

0"
13

'-6
"

43
'-1

0"

9'

5'

11'-3"

12'-6" 8' 12'-6"

11'-3"

8'

6'
-9

" H
RM

. C
L.

STORAGE

3'

UPPER  FLOOR PLAN

BED RM #2
7'-10"

CLOSET

BATH

9'

5'

11'-3"

STORAGE
CLOSET

TOTAL AREA = 1695.18 SFT

2'2'
2'

12'4"X12'9" 12'4"X12'9"

12'4"X7'6" 12'4"X7'6"
ENSUITE

10'X10'4"
10'X10'4"

11'3"X9'0" 11'3"X9'0"

7'10"X5'7'10"X5'

3'-7"

2'
-8

"

3'-7"

2'
-8

"

4'4'

VAULTED CEILING VAULTED CEILING

SECONDARY SUITE



MAPLE BUILDING DESIGN
&  CONSULTING (MBDC)

10
'

9'
6'

-1
0"

10
'

FRONT (NORTH) ELEVATION 

EAST ELEVATION 

FG 412.0FG
 41

2.0

EG 409.8

EG
 41

0.6

F+E 408.5

EG
 41

0.6

FG 412.0

23
'-8

"

30
'-5

"

5'

ITEM 3.1

2'
2'

5'

SPACE FOR FUTURE  BIKE AND 
OUTDOOR EQUIPMENT STORAGE



MAPLE BUILDING DESIGN
&  CONSULTING (MBDC)

WEST  ELEVATION 

REAR (SOUTH) ELEVATION 

E+
f 4

08.
3

E+
F 4

08.
3 F+E 408.5

EG
 40

9.8
FG

 41
2.0

9'
6'

-1
0"

10
'

10
'

23
'-8

"

30
'-5

"

2'

ITEM 3.1

5'

5'
-3

"

SPACE FOR FUTURE  BIKE AND 
OUTDOOR EQUIPMENT STORAGE



MAPLE BUILDING DESIGN
&  CONSULTING (MBDC)

ATTIC ACCESS SECTION

2'-3"

2'-0"

PARTY WALL DETAIL  

9'
9'

BASEMENT

1ST FLOOR

ATTIC SPACE

2ND FLOOR

9'

BASEMENT

TYPICAL FOUNDATION DETAILS SHOWING INSULATION AROUND FLOOR SLAB

TO CLADDING
(YARD SETBACK) VARIES

TO CONCRETE
FDN

8"

FDN WALL DETAILS SHOWING SETBACKS

8"
 M

IN
.

TYPICAL DETAIL FOR PORCH  OVER LIVING SPACE
( REAR COVERED PORCH   DETAIL)

2"

EAVE & CLADDING DETAIL  FOR  NORTH AND SOUTH  ELEVATIONSEAVE  DETAIL FOR EAST   AND  WEST   ELEVATIONS 

6.
5'

/ 1
98

0m
m

 m
in

. h
ea

dr
oo

m

MA
X.

 7
.8

7"
 (2

00
 m

m
)

MA
X.

 7
.8

7"
 (2

00
 m

m
)

10"
(300 mm MAX.)

DOOR SILL DETAIL

RATED FLOOR SECTION
(NTS)

TABLE A-9.10.3.1.B

ASSEMBLY:       F6H
FIRE RATING:    1 HOUR
SOUND RATING:   43 STC
IMPACT INSULATION:   36 IIC TABLE A-9.10.3.1.A

ASSEMBLY:       W3b
FIRE RATING:    1 HR

SOUND RATING:   48 STC

RATED WALL SECTION-A
(NTS)

FLOOR   ASSEMBLY AS PER

BCBC 2018

ITEM 3.4

WALL  ASSEMBLY AS PER

BCBC 2018



MAPLE BUILDING DESIGN
&  CONSULTING (MBDC)

SECTION "C-C"

18
" M

IN
MI

N 
8"

18
" M

IN
MI

N 
8"

2' MAX. OVERHANG
INCLUDING GUTTER ( TYP.)

8'

NW
SW

S

SE

E

NE

LEFTT (W) ELEVATION

E +
F 4

06.
62

F+E 406.52

9'

ENTRY SLAB: 407.1 ENTRY SLAB: 407.1

F+E 407.32
F+

E 4
06.

52

5'
-3

"

RIGHT (E) ELEVATION

F+
E 4

07.
40

F+
E 4

07.
32

F+E 407.40

FRONT (S) ELEVATION

REAR (N) ELEVATION

U/CEILING: 416.1

ROOF PEAK: 421.35'

8'-8" 8'-8"5'-10"

3'-8" 10' 3'-8"10'1'-8"

29' (O/A)

10
'

10
'

20
' (

O/
A)

5'-10"

10
'

10
'

20
' (

O/
A)

29' (O/A)

GA
RB

AG
E 

AN
D 

RE
CY

CL
IN

G

GA
RB

AG
E 

AN
D 

RE
CY

CL
IN

G

2'-5"

2'-6"

ONE CAR GARAGE ONE CAR GARAGE

GARAGE  PLAN
TOTAL AREA = 580.0 SFT

W

E +F 406.62

2'
2'

11'-5"

BI
CY

CL
E 

ST
OR

AG
E

6'
8'

6'
8'

BI
CY

CL
E 

ST
OR

AG
E

4'
-5

"

14
'-6

"

ENTRY SLAB: 407.1

2'
2'

ENTRY SLAB: 407.1

U/CEILING: 416.1

ROOF PEAK: 421.35'

9'
5'

-3
"

ITEM 1.6

11'-5"

AVE REAR GRADE:406.85'



10
0m

m
 (4

")
FL

AN
GE

10
0m

m
 (4

")
FL

AN
GE

MAPLE BUILDING DESIGN
&  CONSULTING (MBDC)



NW

W

SW

S

SE

E

NE

MAPLE BUILDING DESIGN
&  CONSULTING (MBDC)

CONTEXT MAP

EXISTING  ZONING MAP

STREETSCAPE ALONG 22ND  EAST STREET  TOWRDS  SOUTH

229 EAST 22ND STREET

STREETSCAPE ALONG 22ND  EAST STREET TOWARDS NORTH 



MAPLE BUILDING DESIGN
&  CONSULTING (MBDC)

229

223

233

223233

EG 409.8

EG
 41

0.6

FG 412.0FG
 41

2.0

239

219

EXISTING STREETSCAPE 

 STREET SCAPE WITH PROPOSED DUPLEX 

239

219



MAPLE BUILDING DESIGN
&  CONSULTING (MBDC)

EL=405.7
PP

MHHYDRO

EL=409.0
PP

RIM EL=408.8
MH STORM

407.9

408.2

408.6
408.5

408.9

409.1

408.4

408.2

407.8

407.7 406.9

407.8

408.7

407.7
408.2

409.4

EL=431.8
ROOF PEAK

412.6

413.2

413.7

414.3

414.4

414.3

414.0

413.8

413.3

412.8

411.0

FH

RIM EL=414.9
MH SANITARY

410.0
410.9

410.8

411
.2

411.2

EL=413.0

MAIN FLOOR
(DOOR SILL)

WV

GM

EL=410.2
TOP WALL

EL=410.3
TOP WALL

EL=409.1
TOP WALL

EL=408.6
TOP WALL

EL=408.4
TOP WALL

411.3 410.4 410.1

409
.7

408.9

407.5
406.4

406.3

406.2 406.1
406.1

406.1

406.7
408.0

408.4

409.4

410
.6

405.4

405.8406.7

407.2

407.5

407.4

406.9

406.3 405
.7 405.3

406.7
406.6

406.5

406.6

407.9
408.4 408

.4

407
.0

406
.0

405
.8

407.0

406.6

406.9

406.3

406
.9

409.6

408
.8

407.0407.3
407.5

407.1
407.2407.7

409.1

408
.7

408
.8

409
.0

409
.2409.6

EL=404.4
GARAGE SLAB

409
.0

416.7

EL=408.8
MAIN FLOOR

409.4
409.8

410.3

EL=408.6
GARAGE SLAB

EL=429.2
ROOF PEAK

EL=413.5
MAIN FLOOR

412.2

411.7

411.1

410.6

410.2

409.8

410.1410
.6411.2

411.7

412.2

412.8

410.7

411.4

411.6
410.7

411.3
411.2

410.9

412
.4

412
.6

409
.7

407.7

406.0

13.0

7.9

16.7

7.9

3.0

48.5

32.7
48.6

GUTTERGUTTER

W
O

O
D

 FE
N

C
E

CONCRETE SIDEWALKCONCRETE SIDEWALK

45.6

13.4

12.0

4.9

3.4

21.8

28.6

26.5

1.
5 13.6

3.4

8.2

5.3

1.9

E
D

G
E

 O
F 

A
S

P
H

A
LT

E
D

G
E

 O
F 

A
S

P
H

A
LT

EDGE OF ASPHALTEDGE OF ASPHALT

W
O

O
D

 FE
N

C
E

WOOD FENCE PROPERTY LINE = 51.02

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 LIN

E
 = 135.09

PROPERTY LINE = 51.02

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 LIN

E
 = 135.09

RIM EL=388.6
MH STORM

54.1 51.0 478.5

6.8

6.6

28.7

67.7 51.0 101.1

28.7

W
O

O
D

 FE
N

C
E

W
O

O
D

 FE
N

C
E

40
8

41
0

412

41
0

406

406

41
4 41

2

410

40
8

2'

EL=431.8
ROOF PEAK

411.2

410.7

410.3

409
.8

407.9
408.4 408

.4

408
.2

407.0
407.9

408.3
408.5

408.4

408
.3

408.5

409.6

408
.8

408.5

408.6

409.1

408.4

408
.5

408
.7

408
.8

409
.0

409
.2

409
.0 416.7

411
.1

411.3
411.2

412
.5

WOOD
STAIRS

28.6

40
8

41
0

SUNKEN PATIO

F+E 408.5 F+
E 4

08.
3

COV. PORCH

SUNKEN PATIO

COV. PORCH

PROPOSED DUPLEX

F.
P

.

COVERED DECK COVERED DECK

7

W
IN

. W
EL

L

26
' P

L 
TO

 F
DN

15
'

13
'-4

"

PROPOSED TWO CAR
GARAGEGARAGE



44
'-3

"

MAPLE BUILDING DESIGN
&  CONSULTING (MBDC)

PORCH

41'

13'-2"

40
'-5

"

3'
-1

1"
3'

-6
"

11
'

CELLAR PLAN
FOOTPRINT =1814.71 SFT

FIRST FLOOR PLAN
TOTAL AREA = 1716.06 SFT

33'-8"

41'

20'-6" 20'-6"

HWT

BOILER

44
'-3

"

3'
-1

1"

SUNKEN PATIO

4'
-4

"

15'-5"

13'-2"

44
'-3

"

20'-6"

7'-9"

41'

7'-4"

7'-4"

NW

W

SW

S

SE

E

NE

13'-2"

40
'-5

"
3'

-1
1"

3'
-6

"
11

'

HWTBOILER

SUNKEN PATIO

20'-6"

7'-9"

7'-4"

PORCH

36
'-1

"

3'
-1

1"

4'
-4

"

15'-5"

44
'-3

"

TOTAL AREA =1716.01 SFT

20'-6"

36
'-1

"

20'-6"

13'-2" 13'-2"

UTILITIES AREA =98.70 SFT

49.35 sft 49.35 sft

144.87 sft 144.87 sft

UTILITIES AREA 

LEGEND:

BASEMENT COVERAGE

UTILITY AREA

MAIN FLOOR COVERAGE

UPPER FLOOR COVERAGE



MAPLE BUILDING DESIGN
&  CONSULTING (MBDC)

NW

W

SW

S

SE

E

NE

41'

TOTAL AREA = 1695.18 SFT

20'-6"

13'-7" 6'-11" 6'-11"

41'

20'-6"

13'-7"

20'-6" 20'-6"

12'-6" 8' 12'-6"8'

UPPER  FLOOR PLAN

43
'-9

"

13'-7" 6'-11" 6'-11" 13'-7"

20'-6" 20'-6"

43
'-1

0"

3'

41'

TOTAL AREA = 1694.77  SFT

13'-7" 6'-11" 6'-11" 13'-7"

ROOF PLAN

43
'-9

"

13'-7" 6'-11" 6'-11"

3'
-1

1"

13'-7"

3'
-1

1"

43
'-1

0"

3'

3'
-1

1"

36
'-1

1"

20'-6"

36
'-1

1"

20'-6"

LEGEND:

BASEMENT COVERAGE

UTILITY AREA

MAIN FLOOR COVERAGE

UPPER FLOOR COVERAGE



EL=405.7
PP

MH HYDRO

407.9

407.8

407.7

406.9

407.8

408.7

407.7
408.2

EL=431.8
ROOF PEAK

412.6

413.2

412.8

411.0

410.0
410.9

410.8

411
.2

411.2

411.2

WV

GM

EL=410.2
TOP WALL

EL=410.3
TOP WALL

EL=409.1
TOP WALL

EL=408.6
TOP WALL

EL=408.4
TOP WALL

411.3

410.7

410.3
410.4

410.1

409
.7

408.9

407.5
406.4

406.3
406.2

406.1

406.1
406.1

406.7

408.0

408.4

409.4

409
.8

410
.6

407.4

406.9

406.3 405
.7

405.3

406.7
406.6

406.5

406.6

407.9
408.4 408

.4

407
.0

406
.0

405
.8

407.0

406.6

406.9

408
.2

406.3

406
.9

407.0
407.9

408.3

408.5

408.4

408
.3

408.5

409.6

408
.8

407.0407.3
407.5

407.1
407.2407.7

408.5

408.6

409.1

408.4

408
.5

408
.7

408
.8

409
.0

409
.2

409.6

EL=404.4
GARAGE SLAB

409
.0

416.7

409.4

409.8

410.3

412.2

411.7

411.1

410.6

410.2

409.8

410.1410.6

411.2

411.7

412.2

412.8

411
.1

410.7

411.4

411.6
410.7

411.3
411.2

410.9

412
.5

412
.4

412
.6

409
.7

407.7

406.0

RO
CK

/C
ON

CR
ET

E 
W

AL
L

13.0

48.6

EX. ASPHALT DRIVEWAY

WOOD
STAIRS

GUTTER
GUTTER

5.9' WIDE PROPOSED CONCRETE SIDEWALK

28.6

20.0

12.9 3.4

6.8

3.4

7.5

3.4

6.8

3.4

8.8

3.4

6.8

3.4

2.57.0

16.4

EDGE OF ASPHALTEDGE OF ASPHALT

EX
 . 

W
OO

D 
FE

NC
E 

TO
 B

E 
RE

M
OV

ED

EX. WOOD FENCE TO BE REMOVED
PL  51.02

P 
L 

13
5.

09

6.8

6.6

28.7

28.7

W
O

O
D

 FE
N

C
E

40
8

41
0

412

406

406

41
2

410

SUNKEN PATIO

MAPLE BUILDING DESIGN
&  CONSULTING (MBDC)

P L 51.02

P 
L 

13
5.

09

EG 409.8

E+F 408.5 E+F 408.3

1.51' PL TO DRIVEWAY

PROPOSED TWO CAR
GARAGE

27' O/A

1.51' PL TO DRIVEWAY

20
' O

/A

48' DRIVEWAY XING

PARKING PAD
9.5'x20'

PARKING PAD

NW

W

SW

S

SE

E

NE

5' PL TO FDN 5.02' PL TO FDN

406.7407.2

407.5

ASPHALT

EX. ASPHALT DRIVEWAY

4' WIDE CONCRETE PATHWAY

TO BE REMOVED

GARDEN
LANDSCAPE

LANDSCAPE LANDSCAPE

LANDSCAPE

LANDSCAPE

61
.8

4'
  P

L 
TO

 M
AI

N 
FL

R

25
'

5'
 P

L 
TO

 F
DN

25
'

2'x2' STEPPING STONES

2'x2' STEPPING STONES

2'x2' STEPPING STONES

2'x2' STEPPING STONES

COV. PORCH

26
' P

L 
TO

 F
DN

15
' P

L 
TO

 F
DN

61
.8

4'
 P

L 
TO

 F
DN

  (
BA

SE
ME

NT
)

TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY PLAN OF LOT 32 BLOCK 208 DL 546
GROUP 1 NWD PLAN 5481

CIVIC ADDRESS: 229 22ND ST EAST, NORTH
VANCOUVER
PID: 011-144-939

INTERLOCKING TILES 

COMPACTED GRAVEL

4'
14

'

SUNKEN PATIO

GA
RB

AG
E 

& 
RE

CY
CL

IN
G

9.5'x20'

FG 412.0

COMPACTED GRAVEL

PERMEABLE (NO POLY UNDER)

COV. PORCH

PROPOSED DUPLEX

FG 412.0

F.
P

.

F.
P

.

41' (BUILDING WIDTH) O/A

44
.2

5'

47
.7

5'
  O

/A
 (D

EP
TH

 O
F 

TH
E 

BL
DG

.)

EG 410.6

56
.7

5'
  (

MA
IN

 F
LR

. F
ND

 T
O 

RE
AR

 D
EC

K)

COVERED DECK COVERED DECK

PERMEABLE (NO POLY UNDER)

39
.8

4'

5'
 P

L 
TO

 F
DN

4R @7.5"

DN
RUN 12"
36" HANDRAIL

4R @7.5"
DN

RUN 12"
36" HANDRAIL

23'

7

4' WIDE CONCRETE PATHWAY

4' WIDE CONCRETE PATHWAY

4' WIDE CONCRETE PATHWAY

EX
. C

ON
. W

AL
KW

AY
 T

O 
BE

 R
EM

OV
ED

W
IN

. W
EL

L

W
IN

. W
EL

L

2.0' PL TO WIN. WELL 2.02' PL TO WIN. WELL

8.
82

'
3.

28
'

5.
9'

FG 412.0 FG 412.0

TO BE REMOVED

EAST 22 STREET

LANE 20' WIDE

EX . WOOD FENCE TO BE REMOVED

E+F 408.4 E+F 408.4

ITEM 4.4

26.24'

EX. GUTTER

LOT COVERAGE OVERLAY PLAN

LOT AREA: 6892 SFT

GFA (35%+1000 SFT)
ALLOWED

3411.24
PROPOSED

3412.2

4135.2IMPERV. 60%

2412.2LOT  COVERAGE (35%) 2394.71
GARAGE 580.0591.37

3799.25



EL=405.7
PP

407.9

408.2

407.8

407.7

406.9

407.8

408.7

407.7
408.2

EL=431.8
ROOF PEAK

412.6

413.2

412.8

411.0

410.0
410.9

410.8

411
.2

411.2

411.2

WV

GM

EL=410.2
TOP WALL

EL=410.3
TOP WALL

EL=409.1
TOP WALL

EL=408.6
TOP WALL

EL=408.4
TOP WALL

411.3

410.7

410.3
410.4

410.1

409
.7

408.9

407.5
406.4

406.3
406.2

406.1

406.1
406.1

406.7

408.0

408.4

409.4

409
.8

410
.6

407.4

406.9

406.3 405
.7

405.3

406.7
406.6

406.5

406.6

407.9
408.4 408

.4

407
.0

406
.0

405
.8

407.0

406.6

406.9

408
.2

406.3

406
.9

407.0
407.9

408.3

408.5

408.4

408
.3

408.5

409.6

408
.8

407.0407.3
407.5

407.1
407.2407.7

408.5

408.6

409.1

408.4

408
.5

408
.7

408
.8

409
.0

409
.2

409.6

EL=404.4
GARAGE SLAB

409
.0

416.7

409.4

409.8

410.3

412.2

411.7

411.1

410.6

410.2

409.8

410.1410.6

411.2

411.7

412.2

412.8

411
.1

410.7

411.4

411.6
410.7

411.3
411.2

410.9

412
.5

412
.4

412
.6

409
.7

407.7

406.0

RO
CK

/C
ON

CR
ET

E 
W

AL
L

13.0

48.6

EX. ASPHALT DRIVEWAY

WOOD
STAIRS

GUTTER
GUTTER

5.9' WIDE PROPOSED CONCRETE SIDEWALK

28.6

20.0

12.9 3.4

6.8

3.4

7.5

3.4

6.8

3.4

8.8

3.4

6.8

3.4

2.57.0

16.4

EDGE OF ASPHALTEDGE OF ASPHALT

EX
 . 

W
OO

D 
FE

NC
E 

TO
 B

E 
RE

M
OV

ED

EX. WOOD FENCE TO BE REMOVED
PL  51.02

P 
L 

13
5.

09

6.8

6.6

28.7

28.7

W
O

O
D

 FE
N

C
E

40
8

41
0

412

406

406

41
2

410

40
8

SUNKEN PATIO

MAPLE BUILDING DESIGN
&  CONSULTING (MBDC)

P L 51.02

P 
L 

13
5.

09

EG 409.8

E+F 408.5 E+F 408.3

1.51' PL TO DRIVEWAY

PROPOSED TWO CAR
GARAGE

27' O/A

1.51' PL TO DRIVEWAY

20
' O

/A

48' DRIVEWAY XING

PARKING PAD
9.5'x20'

PARKING PAD

NW

W

SW

S

SE

E

NE

5' PL TO FDN 5.02' PL TO FDN

06.7407.2

407.5

ASPHALT

EX. ASPHALT DRIVEWAY

4' WIDE CONCRETE PATHWAY

TO BE REMOVED

61
.8

4'
  P

L 
TO

 M
AI

N 
FL

R

25
'

5'
 P

L 
TO

 F
DN

25
'

2'x2' STEPPING STONES

2'x2' STEPPING STONES

2'x2' STEPPING STONES

2'x2' STEPPING STONES

COV. PORCH

26
' P

L 
TO

 F
DN

15
' P

L 
TO

 F
DN

61
.8

4'
 P

L 
TO

 F
DN

  (
BA

SE
ME

NT
)

CIVIC ADDRESS: 229 22ND ST EAST, NORTH
VANCOUVER

INTERLOCKING TILES 

COMPACTED GRAVEL

4'
14

'

SUNKEN PATIO

GA
RB

AG
E 

& 
RE

CY
CL

IN
G

9.5'x20'

FG 412.0

COMPACTED GRAVEL

PERMEABLE (NO POLY UNDER)

COV. PORCH

PROPOSED DUPLEX

FG 412.0

F.
P

.

F.
P

.

41' (BUILDING WIDTH) O/A

44
.2

5'

47
.7

5'
  O

/A
 (D

EP
TH

 O
F 

TH
E 

BL
DG

.)

EG 410.6

56
.7

5'
  (

MA
IN

 F
LR

. F
ND

 T
O 

RE
AR

 D
EC

K)

COVERED DECK COVERED DECK

PERMEABLE (NO POLY UNDER)

39
.8

4'

5'
 P

L 
TO

 F
DN

4R @7.5"

DN
RUN 12"
36" HANDRAIL

4R @7.5"
DN

RUN 12"
36" HANDRAIL

23'

7

4' WIDE CONCRETE PATHWAY

4' WIDE CONCRETE PATHWAY

4' WIDE CONCRETE PATHWAY

EX
. C

ON
. W

AL
KW

AY
 T

O 
BE

 R
EM

OV
ED

W
IN

. W
EL

L

W
IN

. W
EL

L

2.0' PL TO WIN. WELL 2.02' PL TO WIN. WELL

8.
82

'
3.

28
'

5.
9'

FG 412.0 FG 412.0

TO BE REMOVED

EAST 22 STREET

LANE 20' WIDE

E+F 408.4 E+F 408.4

ITEM 4.4

26.24'

EX. GUTTER

LANDSCAPE PLAN

vl
vlvl vl

vl
vlvlvlvl

vl
bsbs bs

bs bs
bs

aj aj aj aj aj ajajajajajaj aj
aj aj ajaj

bs

bs

bs

bs

aj

aj

aj

bsbs

bs

bs

bs bs bs

bs

bs

bs

bs

bsbs

aj

aj

bs

bs

bs
AC

AC AC

AC

AC

bs

bs

bs

bs

bs bs
bs bs

bsbs

bs

bsaj

aj

aj aj aj

aj

ajaj

vl

vl

vl

vl

vl

vl
vl

hb

GM

vd vd

vdvd

vl

vl

FENCE  DETAIL

PLANT LIST

SYMBOL SIZENUMBER BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME

hb Nandina domestica1.5-1.8m Heavenly Bamboo

bs #2 POT Deer Fern

vl

Blechnum spicant38

20

10

aj19 # 1 pot Astilbe Japonica Astilbe

vd4 #3 POT Vibumum Davidii David's Vibumum

AC6 #2 POT Acer circinatum Vine Maple

1.2m B & B Thuja occidentalis Smaraged Hrdging Cedar

AC

hb

hb

hb

hb

hb

hb

hb

hbhb

vl

* CNV ARBORIST TO INSTALL 2 STREET TREES
NOTES:

* 6 CM CALIPER WITH 2 M STANDARD;
* 8M ON CENTRE SPACING-CENTRE ON LOT FRONTAGE
 AND OVER WITH THE GRASS BOULEVARD;
* TALL TREE SPECIES TO BE CHOOSEN (40ft or TALLER

* 0.9 m DEEP CONTINUOUS SOIL TRENCH TO ACCOMODATE "TURF -MIX" GROWING MEDIUM"
NOTES:

* ALL SOD TO BE CHAFER BEETLE RESISTANT OR SEEDED USING A CHAFER BEETLERESISTANT MIX
  (i.e. AT LEAST 70% TALL TURF-TYPE FESCUE AND AT LEAST 4% MICRO CLOVER BY WEIGHT)
* INSTALL 300 mm DEEP ROOT BARRIER ALONG FULL LENGTH OF FRONT OF PROPOSED SIDEWALK:
* PROVIDE A MINIMUM OF 25 CUBIC METERS OF SOIL PER TREE.

* 6 cm CALIPER WITH 2m STANDARD
* 8m ON-CENTRE SOACING-CENTRE ON LOT FRONTAGE AND OVER WIDTH OF GRASS BOULEVARD;
* TALL TREE SPECIES TO BE CHOSEN (40ft OR TALLER ).

LIGHTING LEGEND

LOW VOLTAGE GROUND MOUNTED LANDSCAPE LIGHTING

WALL MOUNTED LOW VOLTAGE  LIGHTING FIXTURE

8'

6'

5'
-6

"



                      
                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                        

            
  
 

           MBD MAPLE BUILDING DESIGN INC. 
                            Design, Drafting and Consulting                                

 

 

 
MBD Maple Building Design INC. 6669 Main Street, Vancouver, BC VX5 3H3 

                                                Tel: 604 771 6650, 604 323 2572 Fax: 604 324 2572 
 

 
Meeting Minutes of Virtual Developer Information Session 

Rezoning Application from RS -1 to RT-1 for 229 East 22nd Street  

 

Applicants: Bharati Shrestha, Asit Biswas 

Meeting Information:  

Date and Time of Virtual DIS:  July 2, 2022, 6PM -8PM 

Total no of Attendees: 8 

Description of virtual DIS format: The Applicant (design team) conducted the virtual DIS using 

the video conferencing platform “Webex,” connecting all interested attendees. Besides the 

design team, in attendance were the Planner from the City of North Vancouver, the developer 

and three residents from the neighbourhood in question.  

The project proposal, presented in PDF format, included the site plan, context plan, 

elevation of proposed duplex and streetscape. After the meeting had concluded, a comment 

form was sent to all to collect remarks and suggestions regarding the proposed rezoning 

application. 

Summary of Key Concerns: 

1. The excavation of the basement in the proposed site may be unsafe.  

2. The height of the fence and the grade at the front of the neighboring lot, 233 East 22nd 

Street, is higher than those of the proposed site. This has resulted in an obstruction in 

vision from the neighbouring lot to the walkway towards the east. 

3. Following #2, the existing retaining walls on both sides of the property line of 233 East 

22nd Street were discussed.   

 

thuckell
FreeText
Attachment 3�



                      
                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                        

            
  
 

           MBD MAPLE BUILDING DESIGN INC. 
                            Design, Drafting and Consulting                                

 

 

 
MBD Maple Building Design INC. 6669 Main Street, Vancouver, BC VX5 3H3 

                                                Tel: 604 771 6650, 604 323 2572 Fax: 604 324 2572 
 

Summary of proposal to resolve: 

1. A low-fence wall was proposed in order to increase visibility on the neighboring lot.  

2. The front yard grade of the proposed site will be raised to match the neighbouring lot.  

3. As this is only the rezoning application, detail design is of later concern.  

 

Messages from Comment Form:  

The following are direct quotes received from the comment form. 

1. Overall design looks good and in the context with the surrounding neighbourhood.  

2. No objection to the Rezoning 

3. Open for communication 

4. Upgrade the lot by adding more hard and soft landscape 

5. Support the project proposal 

6. Use  LEC or air source heat pump  

7. Use  low carbon cement 

8. Solar Installation on roof 

9. Provide Electric vehicle charging outlets  

 

Conclusion:  

All attendees were respectful, participatory, and welcome to criticism throughout the 

entire session. Everyone supported the rezoning of the proposed site, but each individual had 

varying opinions of the design of supporting structures (e.g., retaining wall, fence, grade, 

heating system, low carbon cement).  

All recommendations made will be considered during the structural design phase of 

the project.  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2023, No. 8956 Document: 2301340-v1 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 8956 

A Bylaw to amend “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” 

The Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, 

Amendment Bylaw, 2023, No. 8956” (Bharati Shrestha / Maple Building Design, 229 
East 22nd Street, RT-1). 

 
2. Division VI: Zoning Map of Document “A” of “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby 

amended by reclassifying the following lands currently having a civic address of 229 East 
22nd Street and legally described below as henceforth being transferred, added to and 
forming part of RT-1 (Two-Unit Residential 1 Zone): 

 
PID: 011-144-939 LOT 32 BLOCK 208 DISTRICT LOT 546 PLAN 5481 

 
from zone RS-1 (One-Unit Residential 1 Zone). 

 
 

READ a first time on the <> day of <>, 2023. 

READ a second time on the <> day of <>, 
2023. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2023. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2023. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CORPORATE OFFICER 

thuckell
FreeText
Attachment 4�


	1 Agenda�
	2 Minutes Dec 12 2022�
	3 Minutes Dec 15 2022�
	Proclamation - Alzheimers Awareness Month�
	4 St Andrews Safety Improvements
	4 Delegation
	4 Correspondence�

	Presentation - Mobility Strategy Update
	IR - Mobility Strategy Update�
	5 229 East 22nd St�
	5-1 Map�
	5-2 Architectural Plans
	5-3 Consultation�
	5-4 Bylaw 8956�




